April 17, 2012
ADDENDUM TO

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
FOR

Design-Build Services For Renovations to Building 502

Issued by the
FORT MONMOUTH ECONOMIC REVITALIZATION AUTHORITY

Date Issued: March 29, 2012

Responses due by 12:00 P.M. EST on April 27, 2012

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE: Sealed proposals are due 12:00 Noon on Friday, April
27, 2012 at the offices of the Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Authority (the
“Authority” or “FMERA”), at 2-12 Corbett Way, Eatontown, New Jersey 07724.

This ADDENDUM includes Request for Proposals (the “RFP”) modifications,
informational attachments, written responses to questions presented in writing via e-mail and to
questions presented orally at the Mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference held on April 5. 2012
All firms that attended the Mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference will be notified by e-mail of the
availability of the Addendum. The Addendum will be made available only at the Authority’s
website: www.fortmonmouthredevelopment.com

The Authority will accept questions related to this ADDENDUM via email only until
5:00 p.m. Eastern Daylight Time on April 20, 2012. Questions should be directed via email
to:

rharrison@njeda.com

A. LIST OF INFORMATIONAL ATTACHMENTS TO THIS ADDENDUM
1. List of Attendees at April 5, Pre-proposal Conference




2. Linkto FOSL
i. http://www.pica.army.mil/FtMonmouth/Documents/FTMM%20Draft%20F0OSL

%20-%20B1de%20502%20030212. .pdf.
B. MODIFICATIONS ISSUED BY THE AUTHORITY

1. Page 3 Section 4.0 last sentence replace “Pre-proposal Conference” with “Onsite

Visit”

2. Pages 12 and 13 — Section III (a)-(d) replace the term “Consultant” with
“Contractor”

3. Page 18 —second line up from bottom replace “attached hereto” with “and”

4. Page 19 — First paragraph, last sentence delete “attached”

5. Page 21 — “Current Administrative Rules and Regulations” Section — reformat

justification/alignment
C. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS PRESENTED AT THE MANDATORY PRE-

PROPOSAL CONFERENCE HELD ON JULY 19, 2011, OR IN WRITING
VIA E-MATL

Question: On Page 18 of the RFP, The graphics and text on this page are contradicting. The
graphics depict a Contractor led team and the text states. The intent of this design-build process is to
be an architect-led design—build (ALDB) process. Can you please clarify who will be the prime
{Contractor or Architect)?

Answer: Either can be the prime but the process must be architect led.

Question: On Page 19 of the RFP, this page refers to an attached proposed floor plan. There is
nothing in the RFP or on the website that contains a floor plan. Can this be provided prior to the
meeting on 4/5/127

Answer: The floor plans and other documentation were made available at the April 5,
onsite visit.

Question: Does the Contractor need to be licensed in New Jersey as a General Contractor prior to

submitting a bid?

Answer: The contractor must be licensed prior to award as a general contractor in New
Jersey.

Question: On Page 14 of the RFP, can you please explain the evaluation criteria? Will cost be the
most important factor? How is the evaluation criteria ranked?

Answer: Cost is not the most important factor. Bidders are encouraged to apply rigor to
each of the evaluation criteria.

Question: Are both meetings (4/5 and 4/9) mandatory?
Answer: Yes

Question: Do both the Architect and Contractor have to attend both meetings in order for a team to
be deemed responsive?

Answer: The Prime bidder must attend each meeting.

Question: Will these questions be answered before the meeting on the 5" Some of the answers
will influence our decision to bid this project or not.



10.

11.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Answer: The questions and answers will be included as part of an RFP Addendum to be
issued after the Q&A period ends. Questions and answers received before and during the
pre-proposal conference will be addressed at the Pre-proposal Conference

Question: Page 43 — Latest additions or latest NJ adopted additions?
Answer: NJ Adopted additions. See Pages 19-22 for all codes that govern.

Question: Referring to Question 1 (above), this is the first time even seen, can you clarify?

Answer: The Architect led or contractor led design build business models are both industry
standards. Please refer to the American Institute of Architects (AlA.org) and/or the
Design Build Institute of America.

Question: Are the labor rates prevailing rage?
Answer:  Yes, by County per the Department of Labor (DOL website).

Question: Will there be a payment performance bond?
Answer: No

Question: Is the asbestos undetermined or not a concern?

Answer: See FOSL (Finding of Suitability to Lease) )
http://www.pica.army.mil/FtMonmouth/Documents/FTMM%20Draft%20FOSL%20-
%20Blde%20502%20030212.pdf.

Question: Is there a leed silver certificate for the Building?
Answer: No, but some elements of leed incorporation are encouraged.

Question: There were drawings at the April 5" site visit. Can they be scanned and sent?
Answer: The proposed floor plan was scanned and uploaded to our website in PDF format.

Question: Is there a CAD file of the floor plans?
Answer: No, see Question 14.

Question: What is timeline for occupancy?

Answer: 150 days from award of the contract. FMERA would like to be moved in by September
15,2012

Question: On Pages 44 &45, clarify the Development schedule?
Answer: See Question 16.

Question: Will access to the site be restricted?

Answer:  Yes, but arrangements will be made to allow access to the selected bidders employees
and sub-contractors if pre-identified.

Question: Is the contractor required to fence in the construction area?
Answer: No, but the Army and FMERA will not be responsible for

. Question: Will the HVAC not be replaced if deemed for reuse?

Answer: HVAC does not have to be replaced if deemed usable for reuse by the design
team/architect.
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24.

25.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Question: On Page 5 under Subcontracting. Who needs to be listed?
Answer:  All Subcontractors and sub consultants.

- Question: What contractor licenses are required? General / Public works / DMPC?

Answer: General

- Question: If the lowest responsible bidder exceeds $400,000, will the Authority negotiate to get to

$400,000.

Answer: FMERA will negotiate the final price with the selected bidder. $400,000 is a budget
number that will be informed by the proposals received.

Question: Is the $400,000 all in or does it include construction costs?
Answer:  All, both soft and hard costs.

Question: Has a HazMet or Environmental Study be done or do you have the latest?

Answer: The latest information is included in the FOSLS which will be posted to the FMERA
website.

Question: Are you looking for value engineering?
Answer:  Yes, if possible.

Question: How do we get access for contractors and subcontractors at the time?

Answer: FMERA has scheduled two additional site visits for April 17® and 19® in order to
accommodate those interested bidders who were unable to participate in our April 5,
omsite visit and to accommodate potential bidders” requests for additional onsite visits.

Question: Is there a fire sprinkler system in the building?
Answer: No, not currently.

Question: If there are site visits scheduled after April 11 (final day to submit questions), how should
questions be submitted?
Answer: Submit questions via email to rharrison@njeda.com by 5 P.M. April 20, 2012. We

will respond  via  email to all  proposed  bidders and  posting to
www.fortmonmouthredevelopment.com

Question: What local Fire Marshall has jurisdiction?
Answer: The NJ State Division of Fire Safety under NJ DCA

Question: Who pays the fees for permits?

Answer: FMERA will pay the fees but the contractor will file the applications and be responsible
for the permits and inspections.

Question: Will the teledata, cable television and wiring be handled by FMERA?

Answer:  All wiring will be designed and installed by the winning bidder. FMERA will connect
its own equiptent.

Question: Does the contractor have to provide sprinklers? Can FMERA find out if sprinklers are
needed?

Answer:  Our understanding of the code is that sprinklers will not be required. Should this change
we would handle it as additional work.
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38.

39.

Question: How are additional site visits to be coordinated?

Answer: The following was emailed to all attendees of the Pre-proposal conference on
April 10, 2012:

Directions for Site Visit:

In order to accommodate those interested bidders who were unable to participate in our
April 5, onsite visit and to accommodate potential bidders’ requests for additional onsite
visits, we have scheduled two additional opportunities to visit the site. These visits will be
on a first come-first served basis on Tuesday, April 17, 2012 between the hours of 9:00A.M.
and 3:00P.M. and on Thursday, April 19, 2012 between the hours of 9:00A.M. and
12:00P.M.. A passenger van will depart from the former Visitor Control Center (VCC)
located on the East Side of Oceanport Avenue across from the Main Gate (just North of the
First Atlantic Federal Credit Union), every 30 minutes starting at 9:00A.M.. Do not attempt
to gain access on your own at the Main Gate. Visitors can return to the VCC on the van
when ready, space available. The van will hold a maximum of ten people per trip. The last
departure from Building 502 will be at 3:30P.M. on April 17 and 12:30P.M. on April 19.
Please limit the visit to 5 persons per potential bidder team. A secure ladder will be
available for roof inspections to firms or individuals in possession of a signed Hold

Harmless Statement and/or insurance certificate naming the Army and FMERA as
additional insured.

. Question: Can prevailing wage charts for this project be provided? Please note that State

and Federal prevailing wage guidelines differ substantially so we need to know which to
use.

Answer: Prevailing Wage Rate Information, please visit the below website and enter
Monmouth County.

http:/1wd.dol.state.nj.us/labor/wagehour/wagerate/prevailine wage determinations.html

Question: Is a bid bond required? Is a Payment and Performance Bond required?
Answer: No

Question: It is impossible to determine the scope of asbestos removal/lead paint removal
without doing substantial destructive testing to the building. Can an allowance be
established for the work so that all bidders are on a equal footing with regard to this item.

Answer: Bidders are encouraged to include an allowance as they see fit. FMERA will

commit to negotiating any extraordinary expenses beyond this allowance due to unknown
issues.

Question: We need the existing plans for the building.

Answer: The existing plans have been posted to www.fortmonmouthredevelopment.com
and will be made available in PDF format on DVD for pick up at our office upon request.

Question: Are the space dimensions on Page 19 mandatory as to size or is there reasonable
flexibility to the design of these areas.

Answer: There will be reasonable flexibility in the space dimensions layout with approval
of the Lead Architect and Fmera Director of Facilities Planning Rick Harrison.
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Question: With regard to the foregoing question, should the design meet the above space
requirements and should there be space left over, could this space be left unfinished (which
would positively affect the economics on our part), or should the designated spaces be
increased in size.

Answer: With the completion of the Build out ,there should not be any unfinished Raw
space left in the building except for the Mechanical Room.

Question: The schedule on Page 44 calls for 150 days from award of contract. This
timeline does not agree with the timeline indicated on Page 45 which would allow only 90
days from contract execution to project completion.

Answer: See answer for question 16.

Question: Item 7.1 Subcontracting on Page 5 of the RFP indicates that the bidder must
identify all subconsultants on its proposal. Does “subconsultant” mean architects and
engineers or does it mean subcontractors additionally? New Jersey State law only requires
that the prime contractors (i.e. structural steel, plumbing, HVAC and electric) be named in a
bid, but it is the intent that additional subcontractors also be named?

Answer: Should read for both “subconsultants” and “subcontractors

Question: Are the building permit/DCA fees waived for this project.
Answer: See answer to question 31

Question: Please provide Scope of Work for Telephone/Data/Security requirements and
responsibility.

Answer: Telephone/Data/Security: Please refer to section 5.10 and 5.11 within the RFP
specifications. Designer may choose Card Access type.

. Question: As per RFP item # 9.1.C, page 6 & 7; it requires five (5) projects experiences

each for the design build team, design consultant and General contractor firm. Instead of
total 20 projects description, can we possibly consolidate our common projects experiences
as design build team than describing for individual team members?

Answer: Yes

Question: As per RFP item # 1.1, page 18, it describes this design build process is to be an
architect-led design build (ALDB) process. Is it acceptable that design-build contractor
(prime) hires an Architect firm (design consultant) as their design consultant for this RFP?
(similar to flow chart-2)?

Answer: Yes

Question: RFP item # 1.2, page-22 — Is design build contractor responsible to pay costs for
all required construction permits, certificates of occupancy, and inspections from the
NJDCA?

Answer: See answer to question 31
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Question: As per RFP item # 9.0, page 45, describes that proposed drawings and
specifications for this project will require a review and an approval from FMERA and the
Federal Government. What duration should we allow in our project schedule for the
review/approval process time for federal government? Again, as NJDCA has local
jurisdiction for this project, are these drgs/specs require the same review/approval from
NJDCA also?

Answer: NJ DCA has a maximum 20 business day turn-around. We will insure that the
Army turn-around is within the DCA 20 business days.

Question: In absence of Asbestos abatement report, are you going to provide an allowance
to be included in our pricing for the unforeseen asbestos materials conditions?

Answer: Bidders should build this in to their proposal. Anything beyond what a bidder
makes allowance for will be negotiated as required

Question: As per RFP item # 5.10, page 43, requires design-builder to price a card access
system. Is there a requirement of total number of doors to be included in this system?
Answer: There will be Three doors That will have card reader access on them. The locks for
the readers will be Maglocks with a door unlock default setting in case of fire alarm
activation and power failures and should meet all local codes as per the architects specs
which will be noted on the final approved prints as to the approved make and model of unit
to be installed.

Question: As per RFP item # 5.11, page 43, Tele/Data system needs to be included in
design-build pricing. Do we need to include interior wiring from the telephone/data outlets
to the server room in our pricing?

Answer: Yes

Question: As per RFP item # 2.4.1. (B), page 24 — requires Design builder to make
recommendations for the existing roof replacement. Does FMERA have special

requirements in terms of number of years for the warranty/guarantee duration and the type
of the new roof installation, if required?
Answer: We are asking for a 15 year warranty

. Question: As per RFP item # 2.4.1. (D), page 24 — requires to price fire proofing as an

alternate. Please provide number of hours of fire rating required for those structural
components because UL assembly numbers provided don’t match up with the UL
certifications website.

Answer: Prevailing Code B Class Group as verified by the architect and noted on the final
drawings.

Question: Will this project contract be a lump-sum cost basis?

Answer: Yes except for any work performed under Section 1.1 ADDITIONAL SERVICEs
of the RFP



ATTACHMENT 1
Mandatory Pre-proposal Attendee List
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